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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To The Members of ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ATK Mohun Bagan Private
Limited (the “"Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “"Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and of its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
("Other Information™)

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises the information included in the Board of Director's report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

s In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for:

i not keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of account maintained in
electronic mode in a server physically located in India from April 01, 2023,
to November 29, 2023. The Company has started keeping daily backup for
working days from November 30, 2023, however backup for entries posted
on non-working days are taken on next working day; and

ii. matters stated in the paragraph i(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(qg).

€) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
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f)

g)

h)

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related
to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi. The Company upgraded to a new accounting software on 18 July, 2023.
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Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year
ended 31 March, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software except for the period 01 April, 2023 to 17 July, 2023 wherein
the predecessor accounting software was used and the audit trail feature
was not enabled.

Further, during our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with, in respect of the accounting software for
the period for which the audit trail feature was operating.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from 01 April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail
as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the financial year ended 31 March, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Sanjiv Vasant {7 =

Pilgaonkar  J5oVUEY

Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
{(Membership No.039826)

UDIN:24039826BKCOEM2677

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 March, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on “the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2024, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Digitally signed by

Sanjiv Vasant Sanjiv Vasant
Filgaonkar

Pilgaonkar  oate200405.22
3 15:54:09 +0530°
Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
(Membership N0.039826)

UDIN:24039826BKCOEM2677

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i

iii.

vi.

a.

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

B. The Company does not hold any intangible assets with unamortised
carrying value.

The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by
the management which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all
the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during
the year. The Company does not have any intangible assets with unamortised
carrying value.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March, 2024, for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, (as amended in 2016), and rules
made thereunder.

The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, reporting under Clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time
of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility
from banks or financial institutions. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided
guarantees or securities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to
be deposit. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the

Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Page 8 of 11



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP

Vil.

viii.

Xi.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay
in respect of remittance of Income Tax dues (Tax deducted at source). We
have been informed that the provision of the Employees’ State Insurance Act,
1948 are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services
tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March, 2024.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that was
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lenders.
Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year. Hence, reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments)
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally). Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

To the best of our information, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, information and explanations given to us no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
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Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

Xvil,

XViii.

XiX.

XX,

filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. The Company is a
private company. Hence, the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to conduct internal audit as per section 138 of
the Act. Hence, the reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company
or persons connected with such directors. Hence, provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

As represented to us by the management of the Company, the Group has more
than one CIC as part of the Group. There are 4 CIC forming part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1,370.95 lakh in the
financial year covered by our audit but had not incurred cash losses in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more,

or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five

crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year. Hence,
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provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during

the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Sanjiv Vasant i iane by s
Pilgaonkar

Tk £33
VEE437 4050

Sanjiv Pilgaonkar
(Partner)
{(Membership N0.039826)

UDIN:24039826BKCOEM2677
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2024
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ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs, lakhs

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 119,01 160.70
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 = -
(c) Income tax assets (net) 5 1598.82 143,76
Total non-current assets 278.83 304.46
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 1,747.97 669.02
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 11,49 176.09
(iii) Other financial assets 8 47.21 97.80
(b) Other current assets 9 136.99 55.29
Total current assets 1,943.66 998.20
Total assets 2,222.49 1,302.66
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(8) Equity share capital 10 1.00 1.00
(b) Other equity 11 (1,670.94) (245.20)
Total equity (1,669.94) (244.20)
Liabilities
Non Current liabilities
(a)  Provisions 14 1.28 -
Total Non current liabilities 1,28 -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - =
small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12 3,606.51 1,011.08
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities 13 284.63 535.78
(c) Provislons 14 0.01 -
Total current liabilities 3,891,15 1,546.86
Total equity and liabilities 2,222.49 1,302.66
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 - 34 are an Integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Sanjiv Vasant 2220
Pilgaonkar ~ Zer*mune”
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar
Partner

Membership No.: 39826

Mumbal
Date - May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ATK Mochun Bagan Private Limited

Digitally signed
GAUTAM i av

Date: 2024.05.22
RAY 14:59:24 +05'30"

Gautam Ray
Director
DIN:05125279

VINAY ez
CHOPRA%: W
Vinay Chopra

Director
DIN:09542030



ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year

For the year

Particulars Notes ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations 15 9,362.56 9,097.79
II  Other Income 16 5.73 5.31
III Total Income (I + II) 9,36B8.29 9,103.10
IV Expenses
(a) Professional and Consultancy expenses 17 7,433.70 6,225.68
(b) Employee benefits expenses 18 32.91 -
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 19 47.02 46.30
(d) Other expenses 20 3,279.08 2,836.12
Total Expenses 10;792.71 9,108.10
A Loss before tax (III - IV) (12,424.42) (5.00)
VI Tax expense
(a) Current tax
For Current year e -
For Earlier year 21 1.32 -
(b) Deferred tax = =
Total tax expense 1.32 -
VII Loss for the year (V - VI) (1,425.74_) (5.00)
VIII Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and loss - -
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset
IX Total comprehensive loss for the year(VII+VIII) (1,425.74) (5.00)
X Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 22 {14,257.39) (50.04)
Diluted (Rs.) 22 (14,257.39) (50.04)
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 - 34 are an integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Date - May 22, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Digitally signed
by VINAY
CHOPRA
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at and for the year endad March 31, 2024

Towar, 2nd Aaor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kallata-700023

A _Equity Share Capital
(11 As st haarch 33, 2024
Amount in ke lakhs
[Batante acat April 01,2023 |Changes n Equity Share Bedsted balsnce 3t the| Changes In equity share capitall Balante as at March 31,
Capitsl due 1o piios beginning of the curcent during the curren] year 2024}
wtiod errors regarting petiod
100 . 1.00 1.00
(2045 3t Maseh i1, 2023
Amaunt in A lakhs
(Balance g5t Apsil 04, 2022 |Changes In Equity Share Restaled balance ot tha| Changes in equity thare capital| Balance as st March 34,
Capltal due to prigs beginning of the ¢urrent duting the current year, 2023
perlod prron| reporting period
100 - 1.00 1.00 )
B Diher Lauity
{01 &4 pe ptarch 33, 2024
Amaunt in R Tokhs
Particulary Retalned Ezrning Tatal
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (245,20) (205.20)
Changes In accounting .
| palicy/priar.perind errors
Restated balance at the
beginning of the current (245.20) (245 20)
roporting year
Total Comprehensive loss
for tha current vear (1,425.74) {1,425.74)
josance atthe end althe {1,670.94) 1,670.94)
(turrent reporting yesr

[R1AL a4 March 33, 2023
Ameunt ln B lakhs
|Particulars Retained Earming Totail
B3l Apimi 01,
ance as at 01,2022 (240,20} {240.20)
Changes in accounting
hgkvllnrl:.. ar nerind ereore .
Restated balance al the
beginning of the cument {240.20) (240,20
reporung vess
[Total Comprehensive loss
for the current vear (500} s-00)
! 1 the end of the
iiomat sl {245.20) {245.20)

The accompanying rotes from 1 - 34 are an Integral part of this financlal statements.

As per out report of even date attached.
For DELOITTE MASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration No. 117366W/W-100018
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ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED

Reglistered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2D20PTC237527

Statement of Cash flow as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (1,424.42) (5.00)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 47.02 46.30
Allowance for expected credit loss 7.76 -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (1,369.64) 41.30
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:
- Increase in Trade receivables (1,086.69) (162.28)
- Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current & Non-Current Financial Assets 50.59 (86.32)
- Increase In Other Current Assets (81.70) (25.82)
- Increase in Trade payables 2,595.44 252,45
- (Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabllites (251.16) 120.62
- Increase in Provisions 1.29 =
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (141.87) 139.95
Income taxes (paid)/ refund (net) (17.39) (11.00)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) (159.26) 128,95
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (35 (pIs0)
Net cash used in investing activities (8) (5.34) (0.60)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) - =
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) (164.60) 128.35
Cash And Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 176.09 47.74
Cash And Cash Eguivalents at the end of the year (Note 7) 11.49 176.09

Note: Figures in brackets represent outflows.

The accompanying notes from 1 - 34 are an Integral part of this financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited

VINAY Gty sareaty

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Ovguady wgpaed by Sanjiv

Sanjiv Vasant vy pagunkar il i i
Pilgaonkar i GAUTAM RAY S e b e CHOPRA b 2eiums
Sanjiv V. Pilgaonkar Gautam Ray Vinay Chopra
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 39826 DIN:05125279 DIN:09542030

Mumbal
Date - May 22, 2024



ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

U92419WB2020PTC237527

Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. General information

ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated in India on June 17, 2020
under the Companies Act 2013. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, managing,
operating, administering and dealing in sports teams and of offering services in the field of sports and
related activities. The Company operates the Kolkata franchise "Mohun Bagan Super Giants" of the Indian

Super League (ISL).

2. Material accounting policies
2.1, Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and other relevant pravisions of the Act.

2,2. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

The balance sheet presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as
separate classifications. For this purpose, an asset is classified as current if:

It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

« Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

« Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

« The company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The normal operating cycle of the company varies between businesses. But for these financial statements,
It has been assumed to be of 12 months.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

2.3. Revenue recognition
Revenue from contract with customers for sale of goods and services

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation
by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a
point of time or over a period ot time. Pertormance obligations satistied over a period of time are recognised
as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to
be satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset,



ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
U92419WB2020PTC237527
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and goods and service tax. Transaction price is recognised based
on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

2.3.1, Income from Prize Money

Revenue is recognised when the franchise has a right to receive the prize money and no Material
uncertainty exists as to its realisation or collection.

2.3.2. Share of Central Revenue
Revenue is recognised when the franchise has a right to receive the allocation of profit from the

Football Sports Development Limited for participating in the League and no material uncertainty exists
as to its realisation or collection.

2.3.3. Income from Sale of Tickets

Revenue from sale of tickets is recognised when the tickets have been sold and no material uncertainty
exists as to its realisation or collection. Revenue includes consideration received or receivable, but net
of discounts and other sales related taxes.

2.3.4. Income from Sponsorship Fees and Advertisement/Brand Promotion/Partnership Fees
Revenue from Sponsorship Fees and Advertisement/Brand Promotion/Partnership Fees is recognized

as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the sponsors and there exists no uncertainty as
to its realisation or collection.

2.3.5. Income from Player Trading

Revenue is recognized as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the clubs to whom players
have been leased out for a period and there exists no doubt as to the collection of such income,

2.3.6. Revenue from Others

Revenue is recognised when it is earned and no material uncertainty exists as to its realisation or
collection.

2.4. Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
2.5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.



ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited

Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other barrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.6. Leases

2.6.1. The Company as a lessee:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract invalves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any injtial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymerits have
been classifled as financing cash flows.

2.6.2. The Company as a |essor:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight -line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.7.

2.8.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

All property, plant and equipment are valued at cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of materials, including import duties and non-refundable taxes,
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.
Interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset until such time that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Category of assets Useful Life
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Plant and Equipments * 5 Years
Flood Light 5.5 years

* Based on internal assessment, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which the Company expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets
are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Intangible assets

2.8.1. Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.8.2. De-recagnition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recagnised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.8.3. Useful lives of intangible assets

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation.

Computer Software 3 years
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.9.

2.10.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impailred.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
2,10.1. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, R

2.10.2, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.10.3. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

2.11. Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information
is available that is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM), in deciding how
to allocate resources and assessing performance.

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to
segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Inter segment
revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair
value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are
not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue /
expenses / assets / liabilities”.

2.12. Accounting of provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Where the effect is material, the provision is discounted to net present value using an appropriate current
market-based pre-tax discount rate and the unwinding of the discount is included in finance costs.

Contingent liabilities are recognised only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due
to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the
Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources, or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made, Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis
and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probabile.

2.13. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments, Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.14. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.14.1, Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
(except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

2.14.2. Amortised cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income” line item.

2.14.3. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for. the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.
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Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Company’s right to recelve the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not reptresent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends
recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item,

2.14.4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
materially reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The company has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

2.14.5. Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased materially
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased materially since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

in case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured in accordance with the above
requirements is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the profit
or loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet; so
the financial asset continues to be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a material increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To
make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of material increases in credit risk since
initial recognition.

2.14.6. De recognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards nf nwnership and rontinues o control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
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financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer, The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

2.15, Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.15.1. (Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2.15.2. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

2.15.3. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

2.15.3.1. Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

¢« on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

¢ itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

» such designation eliminates or materially reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
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accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the companying is provided internally on that basis; or

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

2.15.3.2. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amaortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
{(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.15.3.3. Financial quarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that reguires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are initially measured at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements
of Ind AS 109; and

« the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.15.3.4. Foreign exchange gains and lpsses

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms
part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

2,15.3.5. Derecoagnition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
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amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
- recognised in profit or loss.

2.16. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Ordinary equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary
shares.

2.17. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.18. Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised
in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Judoements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most material effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Recognition of deferred tax assels

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utilized. In addition, significant judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or

econamic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Impairment of non- financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptlons about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on
the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that
may change the utility of certain assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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(iY  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non- financial assets. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.19 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Company Affairs (*MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,
2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
company.



ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Notes to the Flnancial Statements as at March 31, 2024

Note 3 Property, plant & equipment

*

meunt in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Carrying amounts of:

PlanL and equipment 1.89 0.29
Office eguipment 1.75 0.53
Computers 2,38 1.47
Flood light 112,99 158.41
Total 119.01 160.70
Plant and Total
Particulars equipment Office Flaod light| , ible assets
Gross Block
{3alance as at April 01, 2022 0.58 1.05 1.91 249:11 252.65
Addilons . - 0.50 - 0.60
Disposals ~ - = = -]
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.58 1.05 2.51 249,11 253.25
Additions 2.00 1.50 1.84 = 5.34
[Ditposals -
Balznca as at March 31, 2024 2.58 2,55 4.35 249.11 258,59
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at Aprd 01, 2022 0.17 0.31 0.36 45.41 46,25
Depreciation expense 0.12 0.21 0.68 45.29 46.30
Balanc= as at March 31, 2023 0.29 0.52 1.04 90.70 92.55
Depreciation expense 0.40 0.28 0.93 45,42 47,02
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0,70 0.79 1.97 136.11 139.57
|N¢t Block
Bzlance a5 al Aprdl D1, 2022 0.41 0.74 1,55 203.70 206,40
Addltion . - 0.60 - 0.60
Disposals - - - - -
Depredation sxpense 0.12 0.21 0.68 45.29 48.30
Balance a5 at March 31, 2023 0.29° 0.53 1.47 158.41 160.70
Additions 2.00 1.50 1,84 . 5.34
Disposals - - - ¥ .
Depreciation expensse 0.40 0.28 0.93 45.42 47.02
Balance ag at March 31, 2024 1.89 1.75 2.38 112.99 119.01

Note:

AH the above assets are owned by the Company.
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4 __Daf Ltarasael (nell

Particulers

t i B, lakha
As ai As at]
Match 34,2024 _#March 31,2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Others

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Ttems Covered under Section 438

Defesred tax assets (net)

Note: No deferred (ax dtset hag been recognised in 7espect of deduclible temporary differencet ax it 12 not probable that: Iawable pronis will be a

S Income kax assets {nat)

whiZh Lne deduciible temparary difference be utilised,

Amount In Bz lakhs
As

|Pacticut el Ay
L SUE Mearch 31,7024 Mageh 34,2021

TOS Recelvable 159.82 143.76

Total Income Tax Assats (net) 159.82 | 243,76

£ Teada Facaivadlas

(Unsecured, considered good) Amaunt in Rx, Jakhs
. A& ar AS 8T
Particulars March 31,2024 March 21. 2023

Cansidered good 236.08 662.02

Allowances for expected credit loss F.70)
Unbilled Revenue 1,519.65 7.00
Tata o, 174787 569.02

(Nl No trade recelvable are due from directors ar other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. While the irade receivable due from firms or private companles respectively in which nny

direclor Is a parlner, a director or a member is Rs, 18 lakhs {March 31, 2023 - Nil)

(I There are two major having sig balance le,
exceeding 5% of the total trade receivables as at March 11,2023 amounting ta Rs S01.90 lakhs)

(liT) Yrade recelvabtes are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days based upon the credit worthiness of the customers.

(V) M inall for d credil losses of receivables Is as below:

R, In fakhg
Asat Mareh 312028 [As at March 31, 7013

7.761 -
7.78| “

{v) Trade receivahles Aaelng schedule:

Trade cecelvahle as at March 31,2024

5% of the total trade receivables as at March 31,2024 amounling to Rs 1,578.77 lekhs( one major customer having significant balance, J.e.

|
Particulars 3-3- Years | Total
Trade = Qoo 0, L7
lyﬂ ] d Creilit Loag - 12,3
Tetal R 2
Trade recelvable ag at March 31,2023
for periodn fram date of transaction
Particulars’ E
Unbllled Revenue| Less than 6 months 6 months -1 yaar| 1~2 years| 2-3- Years | Total
Undisputed Trade recelvables - consldered goad 7.60| TN - 035 - £64.00
Lesa s Capecied Credil Lods - = s B -] =
Total Zol (TR L . 0,251 - 669,02
7 _Caab wnd canh ! n Amaunt in R, g::!
s ot | At
farticulers Sooch 20 3024 deicecty 4y 3035
[a} Cash on nana - .
(b) Balances with banks
Tn Current Accounts 12603 |
Tetal Cash and Cash Equivel 1149 17e00 ]

8 Other Financial Asset

9 Other Current Asxet

(Unsecured, convidured goad)

L§ goad) 5
& al
Partleulars March 34,2024
(a) Security Deposits 2831
(b) Other advances 1890
Total Other Financial Aszet 47.31

|Particulars

As at]

aai_ne e WA

{2) Advance/deposit with government authorities
(b} Prepald exoense

(€l Other Assets

| Total Other Current Axeet

— Mah 31.302

75,23
25,94

%82
131698
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Note - 10 Equity share capital

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mg. of shares Amagunt in Rs, lakhs No, ef shares Amount In Rg. lakhs
Autharised:
Equily shares of Rs. 1C each with voting rights 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each with voting rights 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Total 10.00C 1.00 10.000 1.00
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,
Particulars Opening Balance Additions /(Deletlons) Closing Balance
Fully Paid Equity Shares with Vating rights
Year ended March 31, 2024
No. of Shares 10,000 - 10,000
Amount in Rs. lakhs 1.00 = 1.00
Year ended March 31, 2023
No. of Shares 10,000 = 10,000
Amount in Rs. lakhs 1,00 - 1.00
(ii) Detalls of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Class of shares / Name of shareholder
Number of shares held % holding in that class of Number of shares held % holding In that class
shares of shares
Equity shares with vating rights
Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited 8,000 80.00% 8,000 80.00%
Mchun Bagan Football Club (Indla) Pvt Ltd 2,000 20.00% 2,000 20.00%
(l1f) Detalls of shareholding by promoters:
[Shares heid by prompoters at the end of the year
Promoter hame No. of Shares “sof total shares %% Change durlng the year
Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited 8,000 §0.00% =
Mghun Bagan Football Club (India) Pvt Ltd 2.000 20.00% N
10,000

(lv) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The equity shareholders are entitled to
recelve dividend as declared from time to time. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve the sales proceeds of the remaining assets
of the company arter distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution shall be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(¥) In the period of 3 years Immedlately preceding March 31, 2024, the company has neither issued bonus shares, bought back any equity shares nor has allotted any equity shares as fully pald-
up without payment being recelved in cash.

(vi) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or divestment.
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11 Other Equity
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars Note As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Retained earnings 11.1 (1,670.94) (245.20)
Total (1,670.94) (245.20)
11.1 Retained earnings
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance (245.20) (240.20)
Loss for the year (1,425.74) (5.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year = =
Closing Balance {1,670.94) (245.20)
Nates:
(i) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents profit/(loss) earned by the Company, net of appropriation, if any.
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R 12 Trade Pavable

Amaunt In Rs. lakhs

i)Trade Payables Ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Current Current
Creditors for supplies and services:
{A)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = -
{B)tctal outstanding dues of creditars cther than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.606.51 1.014.08 |
Total 3.606.51 1.01) &J

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars o ding for foll periods from date of tr ti
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
As at March 31, 2024
(1) MSME : v = =
(il) Others 353051 75.86 0.14 3,606.51
(iii} Disputed dues — MSME - . - =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - v .
A In Rs. lakhs
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction I
Less than 1 year 1-2 years]| 2-3 yeors| Total|
A< at March 31, 2023
(I} MSME = = - B
i) Others 1,005 88 540 - 1,011.08

iit) Bispuled dues — MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Note : The Company does not have dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’),

The disclosures pursuant to the sald MSMED Act are as follows:

Amaount in As. lakhs

Particulars

ar 1, 24

beyond the appointed day during the year

bevond the appointed day during the year

Further interest remainina due and pavahle for sadier vears

Principal amount due to suppliers reqistered under the MSMED Act and remalning unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at vear end
Princlpal amounts paid to suppliers registerec under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Sectlon 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers reqistered under the MSMED Act,

Interest pald, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act,

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made

March 2

The above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises Is on the basis of information avallable with the Company

13 Other current liabilities

unt In Re. lakhs

Partlculars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Curren

Current

{1 Dues ravable to qgovernment 227.15 535.78
(i) Unearned Revenue 57.48 -
Total o ggﬁ £3 535.78

14 Provisions Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Non-gurrent

Current

Non-current

Current

Provision for employee benefits:
(N Gratuity

(i) Compensated absences
Total Provisions

1.09 0,01 - -
0.19 0.00 - -
1.38 0.01 - -
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15 Revenun from aperations

Amuount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Sale of Tickets

Income from sale of tickets 179.63 134.43
{b} Renderina of Services
Revenue from sponsorship lees 422,87
Revenue from advertiseiments and brand promotions etc 7,161.52
Others 83,33
{c) Other operating revenue
Income from prize money 54,44 695.27
Share of central revenue 1,460.77 1,665,807
Tatal 9.362.56 _S.Lm_?._
16 Diherincome Amount In Rs. lakhs
Particulars For the yesr ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income
() Income tax refund 573 2l
Total 5.73 5.31
17 Py Land llancy expenges Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Pr ional and c Itancy exy (includes Player Cost & 7,433,70 6,225.68
participation feps)
Tota} 7.431.70 6,225,68
18 nployee b fi in Rs. lakhs
) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ealaries and allowances 30.37 .
Contribution Lo provident and other funds .54 =
(Total 32.91 &
13 Depreciation and omortisetion Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 47.02 46.30
Total 47.02 46,30 |
20 Qther G Ra. lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended|
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(2) Malch conducting expenses 848,56 795.13
{b} Grassroots football development expenses 402.02 183.14
(€) Markeling and business promatians expense 479.96 559.68
(@) Travel, boarding and lodging expense 998.72 B8950.83
{e) Auditor's remuneration {Excluding Goods and Service Tax)
- Statutory audit 10.00 10.00
- Limited Revlews 6.00 6.00
- Relmbursement of expenses 0.50 0.50
(D Brokerage and commission 204.39 238.14
(9) Rent 39.18 33.95
(h) Rates and \axes 213.49 85.65
(i) Insurance 17.21 4.42
() Net loss on foreign currency transactions 23.77 10.28
(k) Allawance far expected cradil loss 7.76 -
(N Benk charges 2.86 4.10
(m) Miscellaneous expenses 24.66 14.30
TOTAL 3,279.08 2,836.12
21 Income tax expense Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

2) Current tax expense
Current year
For Earller year

b) Deferred tax expense

Tatal income Lak expenie

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

1.32
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ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Reglstered Qffice Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
CIN:U92413WB2020PTC237527

Notes to the Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
26. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined conteibution plans

Provident Fund

The State adminlistered Provident and pension fund is a defined contribution scheme, whereby the Company deposits an amount
determined as 3 fixed percentage of basic pay to the fund every month. The expenses recognised during the year towards defined
contribution plan is Rs. 1.43 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 is Nil) as contributlon In the Statement of Profit
2nd Loss.

The Company offers the folk g employee benafit schemes to its employees:

Detined banafil plang

i. Gratulty

The company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined banefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirament, death while In employment or on ter lon of empl t of an t

equivalent ta 15 to 26 days salary payable for each completed year of service, Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuanial valuation, The Company is
exposed to actuarial risk, Interest risk, salary escalation risk, d graphic risk, reg y risk.

{ther long tam emplzves banefas:

i. Compensated absences

The following table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit plans and other lang term benefits and the amount recognised in
the financial statements:

A
For the Year ended
Particulars tMarch 31,2024
Gratuity

Components of statement of income statement charae
Current service cost 0.44
Past service cost 0.66
Interest Cast on Net DBO i
Actuarial (aains) / losses from financlal assumptions =
Actuarial (qains) / losses from demoaraphic assumbtions -
Actuarial (aains) / losses from experlence adiustments =
‘Total expense recognised in Total Comprehensive Income 1.10

Liabllite r ised in the Bal Sheet
Current liabllity 0.01
current liability 1

agoanicad in the Balance Shaat 1,10

Amopunt In Re, [akhg
For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024

Gratuity

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the
vaar

Present value of DBO at beqinnina of the vaar &
Expenses (Income) recoanized in Income statement 1.10
Past service cost =
Pregent valua of DBO at the end of the vear 1,10

Reconciliation of benefit obligations
Obliaation at start of the vear -

Current service cost 0.44
Interest cost 0.66:
Benefits pald directly by the Companv -
Extra pavments or exoenses/(income) -
Olslination of past service cost -
Actuarlal loss -
Defined benefits obligations at the end of the vear 1.10

R ts of defined benefit plans

Actuarial aain/(loss) due to chanaes in financial assumobions
Actuarlal aaln / (losses) from demoaraphic assumotions
Actuarial qain/(loss) on account of experience adiustments
Total actuarial oaln/(loss) recoantsed In OCI

L

Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 6.95%
Salarv escalation 5.00%
Attrition rate per thousand:
uoto 40 vears 4.20

40 vears and above NIl

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan (In years) 24.50

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarlal risks are as follows:




Credit risk

If the scheme 5 insured and fully funded on projecied umit credil
basis there is 3 credit risk to the extent the insurer(s) is/ are unable
ta discharge their obligations Induding failure to discharge in tirmely
AN

Pay-as-you-go risk

For unfunded schames financial planning could be difficult ags the|
banefiis payable will directly affect the revenue and this could be
widely fluctualing from year to year, Moreover there may be an
oppartunity cost of better investment returas affecting adversely the
sogt nf tha i

Discount rate risk

The Campany is exposed to Lhe risk of f2ll in discount rate. A fall in
discount rate will eventually increase In the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit thereby increasing the value of Lhe
latiility,

Liquidity risk

This risk arises from the short term asset and Pabllily cash«llow
mismatch thereby causing the Company being unable to pay the
hanefits as they fall due in the short term. Such a situation could be
the result of holding large iliquid assets disregarding the results of
cash-fMlow projections and cash outflow Inflow mismatch, (or it could
e due to insufficient assets/cash.)

Demographic risk

In the valuation of the Uability certain demagraphic (mortalty and
altrition rates) assumptlons are inherent, The Company Is exposed
o this risk to the extenl of actual experience eventually being worse
compared to thal assumed thereby causing an increase in the

{scheme cost.

Reguiatory risk

Gratulty Benefit must comply with the reg s of the Pay t
of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of]
change in the regulations requiring higher gratulty payments (e.g.
raising the present ceiling of Rs, 20 lakh, ralsing accrua! rate fram
15/26 etc.)

Future salary increase risk

The scheme cost is wery senstlive to the assumed fulure salary
escaiation rates for all final salary defined benefil schemes. If actual
fulure salary escalations are higher than that assumed in the
valuation actual scheme cost anid hence the value of the labiity will
bie higher than that estimated. )

Fulure salory increase assumed has three bask companents,
namely, Increaze due to price inflation, Intrease due (o Increase in
future living standard (périodic wage re-negotiation) and increase

due ta dareer progress by way of promplion 3s more skil is

Sapsitivity analveis

The followlng table present a sensitivity analysls to ane of the relevant actuarial assumption, halding other assumptions constant,
showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were

reasonably possible at the reporting date.

nmgun.l.l:n.b#lum
For the year ended March 31,

|Particulars 2024

Geptyity |
Discount rate
+1,08% discount rate 058
= 1.00% discount rate 138
Salary escalation
4+ 1,00% salary escalation 1.38
- 1,00% salary escalation on7
Withdrawal rate
+ 50% withdrawal rate 1.1
- 50% withdrawal rate 1,09
Martalitv rate
+ 10.0% martality rate 1,10

1.10

= 10.0% mortality rate

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation is as below:

Particulars

Amp Eai in Rs. lnkhs
For the year en March 31,
2024

Gratuity.

1st vear

2 to S vears
6 to 10 vears
Hore than 10 vears

ino © o
0 0 O O
o2




ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floar, 70 Diamond Harbour Read, Kolkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

27 Financial Instruments
27.1 Capital Management

The company's caplial management obiective Is to maintaln an optimal debt-equity structure so as to reduce the cost of capltal, thereby enhancing returns to sharchalders. The Cempany also has
a policy of making judiclous use of variaus avallable debr instruments within its overall working capital drawing Imit.

27.1.1 Gearing ratlo
Net ceb: to equity ratia {s NIL 25 the Company is fully financed by cquity.

272.2c ies of 1 Instr

The carrving value and fair value of finznctal instruments by categories,
The table Delow analyses tinancial instruments cacried at falr value, by valuation method, The different levels have been defllned as iollows:

in s lakhs
Fair value through
As at March 31, 2024 Amortised cost Statement of Profit and Total Carrying Value Total Fair Value
Llass
(Einancial assete
Trade les 1.742.97 = 174297 1.247.97 |
et 1) 1 asaeis 4231 - AT L 47,23
{Csh and bank bat 11.49 2 11,49 11,43 |
[ Total finpnciel asants, LEL.01 = 180067 1.806.57 §
|Einangial, TR :
Trade hi _16A6.5] - LADA5L 1.606.51 |
| Tatel financial finbilitics LGOESY 2 b} 180551 ]
[Tatal TL.790.04) - 11,799 80y 11795,
aunt in its. lakhs
Falr value through
As at Morch 31, 2023 Amortised cast Statement of Prafit and Total Carrying Value Tatal Fair Value
Loy
A33eis
' 66%.02 . — 509,02 552,02 |
fmancinl asgels. A7.80. A 22,50, 32,80,
Cath and bank balances 17609 - 17509 17609 |
Tatal finpncial apsets 242,91 - 942.9] 942,91
| Einangial labilities
Hcadde gavibied 101108 : 1.011.99 LEiLon |
| Toksl financinl linbilitics =TT 2 191108 300208 4
Tolal {68473 B 164,17} 1681 7)
Note :

I. The short-term financial assels and liabilities are stated at amorlized cost which Is approximately equal to thelr fair value.

27,3 Fi ial risk bjectives

The Company'’s princlpal finandial liabllities comprises of trade and other payables, and other financlal llabllities, The maln purpose of these financial iabllitles Is to ralse finance for the Company's
operations. The Company has trade and other receivables, and cash Lhat arise directly from Its operations.

The Company is exposed ta market risk, credit risk and liquldity risk.

The Campany's senior oversees the of these risks, The Company's senfor management advises on financlal risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework,

27.4 Market rlak

Market risk Is the risk that (he ¢air values of tuture cash flows of 3 linanclal Instrument will flucluate because of changes In market prices, Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equily risk. Financial instrumentls affecled by market risk indude loans and borrawings, deposits.



ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Regi: ed ONice Addr ce Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kotkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
27 Financial Instruments

27.5 Foreign currency risk management
The company underlakes transaclicns denominated in foreign currencles; conscquently, exposure lo exchange rale fluctuations arise,
The carrying amaunts of the company’s foreign crrency denaminated manetary assets and monetary Jlabltities at the end of reporting perlod are as follows:

Armaunt in lakhs

Liabilities Aszets
Amount in Foreign Ameunt in local Amaunt in Fareign Currency {USD) Amgunt in local
Currency (USD) currency (Rs.) currency (Rs.)
Trade Payables 2.80 232,29 - =
As At March 31, 2023 in As lakhy
Particulars Liabilities Assats
Amount in Foreign Amaunt in local Amount in Foreign Currency (USD) Amount in local
Currency (USD) currency (Rs.) currency (Rs.)
Teadd Payaliles 023 19.12 = =

27.5.1 Forelgn currency senxitivity analysis

The company Is mainly exposed to the currencles USD/EURQ, This senslitivity analysis menlioned in lhe below table has been based on the composition of the Company's financlal assets and
liabifities exposed to foreign currency as at year end. A positive number below Indicates an inzrease In profit where the INR strenglhens 5% agalnst the relevant currency. for 3 5% weakenlng of
the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable Impact on Whe profit and the balances below would be negallve.

Amount in lakhy

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Impact on grefit or loss for the year (1165} 290
27.6 Credit risk management

Credt risk is the risk that a caunterparly falls to discherge an obligation to the Company. The Company is exposed to Ihis risk for various | , for trode recelvables,
placing deposils, investment in mutual funds ete.

The Company conti defaulis of and ather counterparties, Identified either Individuaily or by the Company, and incorporates this Information Into Its credit risk controls,

The Company’s policy Is to transact only with counterpaities wha are highly creditworthy which are assessed based on Internal due diligence parameters.

In respect of trade receivables, the Company is not exposed to any slgnificant credit risk exposure to any siagle counterparty or any group of counterparttes having similar characteristics. Yrade
receivables consist of 3 large number of customers In various geographical areas. Based on historical Information about customer defaull rates management consider the credit quality of trade
recelvables that are not past due or impalred to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, fixec deposits and mulual funds are considered negligible, since the caunterpartles are reputable banks with high quallly external credit ratings.

Other financial assets mainly comprise of terder deposits and sccurily depaosits which are glven to or other gover ) agencles In relatlon to contracts executed and are assessed by
the Campany for credit risk on a continuous basis.

Credit risk refers 1o Whe risk thal a counterparly will default on its g in loss to the [ Tha Company has adopted 2 policy af only dealing with

creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financlal loss from defaults. The Company's exposure of ILs counterparties are contlnuously monitored.

Trade recelvables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse Industrles and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evalualion Is performed on the financial condition of accounts
recelvable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee Insurance cover fs purchased.

Concentlration of credit risk to any countarparty does nct exceed 5% of gross monelary assets except for two majar customer having significan! balance amounting to Rs 1,578,77 lakhs as at
March 31, 2024,

27.7 Collateral held es security and other credit enhancements
The Company doas not collect any collateral or olher credil enhancements ta caver its aredit risks assoclaled with Its finandal assets

27.8 Liquidity rlsk management
The Company manages liquidity rsk by maintalning adequate reserves, banking faclillles and reserve barrowlng facilities, by continuously monitoring lorecast and actual cash Rows, and by
matching the malurity profiles af finandal assets and liabllities.

27.8.1 Liquidity risk tables
The following I« an analysls of the Company's contraclual undiscounted cash flows payable under financlal liabilities as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023

Amgunt in Re. [nkhs

As ot March 31, 2024 | Cureent | atal
gl Viihin 12 tonihe T
Trade a0d s herpavahl LG0ES] FRGTAN
ipatial 1Ak 264,61 2845 ]
al EALLIV L —— R LI
Amount in Rx. lakts
Current
As ot March 31, 2023 Tatal
Within 12 Months
mmwa 101108 L0308 |
5 535,70 535,28
I'.%E-I 154686 153688 )




ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floar, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

28
28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

28.5

28.6

28.7

28.8

28.9

Addltional Informatlon:

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not has any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period

The Company has not kraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shali:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
hehalf of the comnanv (l)itimate Beneflciaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entlty(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Company shali:

a. directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any quarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
{such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company has kept proper books of account as required by the relevant provisions of Companles Act, 2013
other than, not keeping the dally backup of such books of accounts from Aptil 01, 2023, to November 29,
2023, The Backup taken by the Company during the afore-mentioned perlod used to over-write the existing
backups. The Company subsequently implemented dally backup for working days from November 30, 2023,
however, backup for entries posted on non-working days was taken on the next working day.

The Company used Tally ERP 9.0 accounting software during the period April 1, 2023, to July 17, 2023, in
which the audit trail feature was not enabled. On July 18, 2023, the Company upgraded to Tally Pime Edit Log
(EL) version 3.0 which has a feature of recording audit trail. The audit trail feature in the upgraded version is
enabled by default with no option to disable manually.
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ATK MOHUN BAGAN PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN:U92419WB2020PTC237527

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

30 The Company had started its operation since lune 17, 2020.The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, managing, operating,
administering and dealing In sports teams and of offering services In the field of sports and related activities. The Company aperates the Kolkata
franchise "Mohun Bagan Super Giants" of the Indian Super League (ISL).

31 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Ind-AS principles, assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern.
Primarily due to costs associated with transfer of players and re-schedulement of some matches under the Indian Super League (ISL) to dates post the
year end with a consequential decline in revenue recorded during the financial year, the Company incurred a net loss of 1,425.74 lakh and net cash
outflows from operations amounted to ¥159.26 lakh during the year ended March 31, 2024. Also, as on that date the Company’s current liabilities exceed
its total assets by ¥1,668.65 lakh. These factors may cast signlificant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. In the absence of
any other action, the Company will require additional liquidity to continue its operations over the next 12 months.
In response, the Company has obtained sponsorship commitments from its key sponsor, as also, financial and governance support commitment from its
Ultimate Holding Company (i.e. RPSG Ventures Limited) to enable it to meet Its financial obligations. Having regard to the financial capabilities of the
sponsor and the Ultimate Holding Company and past experience of the Company's dealings with those entities, Management believes that there is high
probability that these commitments would be met in time for the Company to, In turn, be able ta meet its financial obligations. Management has
therefore determined that these actions are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty and has therefore prepared these financial statements on a going

31.1 Post the ‘yea'r end, the Company has been abie to receive sponsarship commitments aggregating ¥1,796.00 lakh. These receipts have been used to pay
off the outstanding liabillties of Rs. 1,037.25 lakh as at year end.

32 Segment Reporting
The Company Is principally engaged in 2 single business segment viz,, football development and other allied services. The financial performance relating
to this single business segment is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (being the Board and Executive Officers of the Company)
and hence It is the only reportable segment in accordance with Indlan Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segments,

33 Code on Soclal Security
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has been notified by the
Central Government in the Official Gazette on 29th September, 2020. The draft rules have been released by the Union Ministry of Labour and
Employment on November 13, 2020 and suggestions have been invited from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. The impact of
the change will be assessed and accounted for by the Company in the period in which said rules are notified for implementation.

34 Subsequent Events
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 22, 2024 has approved the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024.
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